

## Multi-Committal and Cross-Committal Configuration Handbook

IS 4.0 HP Integrity Edition and IS 4.0 SP5

9844094-002

November 2006

#### **Notices**

This document contains information proprietary to FileNet Corporation (FileNet). Due to continuing product development, product specifications and capabilities are subject to change without notice. You may not disclose or use any proprietary information or reproduce or transmit any part of this document in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, for any purpose, without written permission from FileNet.

FileNet has made every effort to keep the information in this document current and accurate as of the date of publication or revision. However, FileNet does not guarantee or imply that this document is error free or accurate with regard to any particular specification. In no event will FileNet be liable for direct, indirect, special incidental, or consequential damages resulting from any defect in the documentation, even if advised of the possibility of such damages. No FileNet agent, dealer, or employee is authorized to make any modification, extension, or addition to the above statements.

FileNet may have patents, patent applications, trademarks, copyrights, or other intellectual property rights covering subject matter in this document. Furnishing this document does not provide any license to these patents, trademarks, copyrights, or other intellectual property. Please take a few moments to read the <u>Software</u> <u>License Notice</u> on the Image Services documentation CD. By installing the Image Services software, the customer agrees to be bound by the terms of this agreement.

This product includes software developed by the Mozilla Foundation (<u>http://www.mozilla.org/</u>). License agreement available at <u>http://</u>www.mozilla.org/MPL/MPL-1.1.html#exhibit-a.

FileNet, ValueNet, Visual WorkFlo, and OSAR are registered trademarks of FileNet Corporation.

Document Warehouse and UserNet are trademarks of FileNet Corporation.

All other product and brand names are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective companies.

Copyright © 2001, 2006 FileNet Corporation. All rights reserved.

> FileNet Corporation 3565 Harbor Boulevard Costa Mesa, California 92626 800.FILENET (345.3638) Outside the U.S., call: 1.714.327.3400 www.filenet.com

## Contents

### About This Manual 7

#### Related Documents 7

#### Conventions 8

Cautions, Notes, and Tips 8

Typing Instructions 8

Emphasis 8

Left-side Flags 9

FileNet Education 9

Comments and Suggestions 9

### **1** Conceptual Overview 10

#### Cross-Committal System Overview 11

Document Committal Sequence 11 Configuring a Cross-Committal System 13 Add Peers to Source and Target Systems 13 Ensure matching Names and Passwords 13 Ensure Matching Indexes, Family Names and Classes 14

#### Multi-Committal System Overview 15

Multi-Committal Document Committal Sequence 16 Configuring a Multi-Committal System 19 Add Peers to Source and Target Systems 19 Ensure matching Names and Passwords 19 Ensure Matching Indexes, Family Names and Classes 20 Source System Only 21

Where to Find More Information 22

### **2** Configuring Cross-Committal Systems 23

#### Cross-Committal Checklist 23

System Domain Names 23 Document ID Numbers 24 User Accounts 25 Document Classes 25 Optical Disk Families 26 For Windows Servers Only 26

#### Configure Cross-Committal Systems 27

Update the Host File on the Source System 27 Cross-committal Peers 28 Add Peer to Source System 28 Set Document Number Ranges on the Source System 30 Verify/Configure Batch Entry Services on the Source System 30 Add Peer to Target System 31 Set Document Number Ranges on the Target System 33 Verify/Configure Batch Entry Services on the Target System 33 Verify/Configure User IDs and Passwords On the Source Server 35 Add User to the Source System 36 Add Identical User To The Target System 37 Add Group To Source System 38 Verify/Configure Optical Disk Family on the Source System 42

Verify/Configure Document Class on Source System 44

Verify/Configure User IDs and Passwords On the Target System 48

Add User to the Source System 49 Add Identical User To The Target System 51 Add Group To Target System 51 Verify/Configure Optical Disk Family on the Target System 56 Verify/Configure Document Class on the Target System 58 Test the Cross-Committal Configuration 62

Return to Production Mode 62

### **3** Configuring Multi-Committal Systems 63

Multi-Committal Checklist 63

System Domain Names 63 Document ID Numbers 64 User Accounts 64 Document Classes 65 Optical Disk Families 66 For Windows Servers Only 66

#### Configure Multi-Committal Systems 67

Update the Host File on the Source System 67 Multi-committal Peers 67 Add Peer to Source System 68 Set Document Number Ranges on the Source System 69

Verify/Configure Batch Entry Services on the Source System 69 Add Peer to Target System 71

Set Document Number Ranges on the Target System (optional) 72 Verify/Configure Batch Entry Services on the Target System 72 Verify/Configure User IDs and Passwords On the Source Server 73 Add User to the Source System 75 Add Identical User To The Target System 76 Add Group To Source System 76 Verify/Configure Optical Disk Family on the Source System 81 Creating a Remote Family 83 Verify/Configure Document Class on Source System 84 Verify/Configure User IDs and Passwords on the Target System 87 Add User to the Source System 88 Add Identical User To The Target System 90 Add Group To Target System 90 Verify/Configure Optical Disk Family and Document Class on the Target System 95 Verify/Configure Document Class on the Target System 97 Test the Multi-Committal Configuration 99

Return to Production Mode 100

## **4** Scheduling System Committals 101

Index 105

## **About This Manual**

### **Related Documents**

The following documents provide additional information about your FileNet system.

- System Administrator's Handbook
- <u>System Administrator's Companion for UNIX</u>
- System Administrator's Companion for Windows Server
- System Tools Reference Manual

### **Conventions**

We call your attention to information throughout this manual using the following conventions.

#### **Cautions, Notes, and Tips**

The following message types call attention to important information:

- **CAUTION** Caution boxes signal possible unexpected consequences of an action, such as loss of data or time.
  - **Note** Note boxes draw your attention to essential information that you should be sure to read.
    - **Tip** Tip boxes introduce ideas that might make your work easier.

#### **Typing Instructions**

Instructions you enter at the command line are indented and appear in a bold typeface as shown in the example below:

#### **Emphasis**

Bold typeface within text emphasizes an individual word or phrase. Take special note of bold text, as in the following example:

Compatible systems means that the document ID numbers on the respective systems **should not** overlap.

#### Left-side Flags

#### MultSv

Left-sided flags indicate that the text applies to a particular type of server, such as multiple servers or Combined server, or a type of platform, such as UNIX or Windows Server. An example is the MultSv flag to the left of this paragraph. The MultSv flag indicates information for users with more than one server. Users with single-server configurations need not read the sections with this flag.

### **FileNet Education**

FileNet provides various forms of education. Please visit Global Learning Services on FileNet's Web site at <u>www.filenet.com</u>.

### **Comments and Suggestions**

FileNet invites all customers to communicate with the Documentation group on any question or comment related to FileNet manuals and online help. Send email to <u>docs@filenet.com</u>. We will make every effort to respond within one week. Your suggestions help us improve the products we deliver.

# **1** Conceptual Overview

This chapter provides an overview of cross-committal and multi-committal Image Services systems. It illustrates some sample configurations and refers you to other manuals or sections in this manual for more detailed descriptions and procedures.

For details, see the following topics:

- <u>"Cross-Committal System Overview" on page 11</u>
- <u>"Multi-Committal System Overview" on page 15</u>
- <u>"Where to Find More Information" on page 22</u>

### **Cross-Committal System Overview**

Cross-committal provides a method of committing documents to a different Image Services system than the system on which the Batch Entry Services (BES) system resides. Unlike a multi-committal configuration, a cross-committal system can commit to only one Image Services system — its target. You can schedule cross-committals to run during off-peak hours. For more information on this feature, see Chapter 4, "Scheduling System Committals," on page 101.

**Note** You cannot use a cross-committal configuration to commit COLD documents to a target system. For COLD documents, you must use a multi-committal configuration.

#### **Document Committal Sequence**

In a cross-committal configuration, documents are processed by the BES system and committed on the target system. There is no committal on the local (source) system. A committal is initiated on the target system.

**Note** If the BES system fails to communicate with the target Image Services system (for example, when the network fails or the target system is down for maintenance), the BES periodically retries the committal process until it re-establishes communication.

The sequence of events on the target system is as follows:

- The document is migrated to tranlog. This migration must complete before continuing to the next step.
- The document is migrated to primary.

The following shows a cross-committal configuration where the source system is configured as a Remote Entry System (RES). The RES is used for scanning and indexing documents to be committed on the target Image Services system.



Cross-committal Configuration

#### **Configuring a Cross-Committal System**

The following is a high level overview of the tasks you must accomplish when creating a cross-committal system. Detailed steps follow in chapter 2, <u>"Configuring Cross-Committal Systems" on page 23</u>.

#### Add Peers to Source and Target Systems

Use **fn\_edit** on both the source system and the target system to do the following:

- Add a peer system to both the source and target systems. The source system will peer to the target and the target system will peer to the source. The source system must recognize the target as a peer in order to commit to the peer.
- Ensure the systems are compatible: the document ID ranges on both systems must not overlap.
- Turn on Fast Batch Committal.
- Cataloging is not required on the source system.

#### **Ensure matching Names and Passwords**

Use the **Xapex (or Application Executive)**, **Security Administration** to ensure compatible security parameters as follows:

• Ensure that the source and target systems have matching names and passwords. Use the **Users** menu option **Add Users** on both source and target systems to create matching user accounts to give the user access to both source and target systems. For example: System A Security Objects user1:SystemA user1:SystemB System B Security Objects user1:SystemA user1:SystemB

• Set up identical group names on source and target systems. Although the users in the groups can differ, make sure the read/ write/append access group name is present on both systems.

#### **Ensure Matching Indexes, Family Names and Classes**

Use the Xapex Database Maintenance program to do the following:

- Set up any required indexes to match on both source and target systems.
- Define family names to match **exactly** on the source and target systems. Select the family media type for the target system.
- **Note** Although the family names must match, you can select different **media types** for the source and target system.
  - Ensure that document class names match on both source and target systems.
  - Ensure that the read/write/append access group name is present on both source and target systems; however, document class security and users in the group do not have to match.
  - Define access rights for committed documents on the source system.

• Define retention base for committed documents on the target system.

As an alternative, follow the steps above only on the source system, then use the **ddexim** tool to export the data dictionary from the source system, and import the file on the target system. (See the <u>Image Services System Administrator's Handbook</u> for more information on the ddexim command).

### **Multi-Committal System Overview**

A multi-committal configuration provides a way to commit copies of documents to more than one system. This may serve as an alternative backup to be used for disaster recovery or as a central repository.

Completing document committal on the source system triggers committal on the target system. Multi-committal systems use fast-batch committal to commit documents to target systems. The fast-batch objects remain in cache on the source system until they have completed committal on all of the target systems.

**Note** A multi-committal configuration is more efficient when documents are committed to the source system using fast-batch committal.

#### Multi-Committal Document Committal Sequence

In a multi-committal configuration, the document committal sequence is as follows:

- The document is migrated to the local system first. Local disk writes need to complete before the system can release a document to the target system. If local OSAR is not available, batches/documents will remain in local caches until the writes to the local optical is completed. After the local migration is complete, the document is migrated to each of the targets in turn.
- In the local system, if a tranlog is required, a migration is initiated and must complete on the tranlog first. Then the document is migrated to primary.
- In each of the target systems, if a tranlog is required, a migration is initiated and must complete on the tranlog first. Then the document is migrated to primary.
- **Note** If a particular target system is down and document committal fails, the system keeps retrying the committal process to the target system where the failure occurred.
- **CAUTION** Post-committal changes to a document index or annotations on one server does not automatically update the documents previously committed to another server. If you make post-committal changes on either the source or target systems and you require replication of document index or annotations, you must duplicate those changes on documents committed to the other servers in the multi-committal chain. For assistance, contact FileNet Professional Services.

The following illustration shows a single-source Image Services multicommittal configuration. The source system is used for scanning and indexing documents which are then committed to the local storage library. After the committal completes on the source system, it automatically commits the documents to the target system.





The following illustration shows a dual-source Image Services multicommittal configuration. A financial organization might use this type of configuration where they scan, index, and commit documents on Image Services servers at more than one branch, and require copies of those documents at their corporate office. After committing the documents on the branch system, the source (branch) system repeats the committal on the target Image Services system, based at corporate headquarters. This enables the organization to retain backup documents in a central location, which could be used for disaster recovery.



Dual-Source Multiple-System Committal to a Single Target System

#### **Configuring a Multi-Committal System**

The following is a high level overview of the tasks you must accomplish when creating a multi-committal system. For detailed steps see **Chapter 3, "Configuring Multi-Committal Systems," on page 63**.

#### Add Peers to Source and Target Systems

Use **fn\_edit** on both the source system and the target system to do the following:

- Add a peer system to both the source and target systems. The source system will peer to the target and the target system will peer to the source. The source system must recognize the target as a peer in order to commit to the peer.
- Depending on your system, you may want to set up the document ID ranges on both systems so that they do not overlap.
- **Note** Although having non-overlapping document IDs is recommended for organizational purposes, this is not *required* for multi-committal systems.

#### **Ensure matching Names and Passwords**

Use the **Xapex (or Application Executive) Security Administration** program to ensure that the **User** and **Security** settings for a user are identical on both the source and target systems:

• Ensure that the source and target systems have matching names and passwords. Use the **Users** menu option **Add Users** on both source and target systems to create matching user accounts to

give the user access to both source and target systems. For example:

System A Security Objects	System B Security Objects
user1:SystemA	user1:SystemA
user1:SystemB	user1:SystemB

• Set up identical group names on source and target systems. Although the users in the groups can differ, make sure the read/ write/append access group name is present on both systems.

#### Ensure Matching Indexes, Family Names and Classes

Use the **Xapex Database Maintenance** program to complete the steps in this section. Refer to the *Image Services System Adminis*-*trator's Handbook* for more information:

- **Note** For organizational purposes, you may want to match doc classes and indexes on both the source and target systems. Family names and media types do not need to match.
  - Set up any required indexes to match on both source and target systems.
  - Define optical disk sizes, or family names, as configured on each system.
  - Ensure that document class names match on both source and target systems.
  - Ensure that read/write/append access group name is present on both source and target systems; however, document class security and users in the group do not have to match.

- Define access rights for committed documents on the source system.
- Define retention base for committed documents on the target system.
- (Optional) As an alternative, follow the steps above only on the source system, then use the **ddexim** tool to export the data dictionary from the source system, and import the file on the target system. (For details on the ddexim command, refer to the <u>Image</u> <u>Services System Administrator's Handbook</u>.)

#### Source System Only

To verify proper family configuration, follow these steps on the source system only:

- After you create an account as described in <u>"Ensure matching</u> Names and Passwords" on page 13, log into Xapex.
- Open the Database Maintenance application and select Define/ Update Family from the Families menu.
- Select the Families option from the Remote menu and select the target domain from the Domains drop-down list.
- Select the family you created in <u>"Ensure Matching Indexes,</u> <u>Family Names and Classes" on page 14</u> from the Families dropdown list.
- **Note** Configuring systems for multiple system committal requires linking the primary disk family on the source system with one or more primary families on target systems. Either target or source systems can point to multiple families, as long as they do not point back to each other, which would result in a loop, causing committals to attempt to repeat indefinitely.

### Where to Find More Information

See the *Image Services System Administrator's Handbook* for more information on the following subjects:

- The fn\_edit on-line help system and configuration details provided in the installation guide for your Image Services system for system configuration procedures.
- Security for Internetworking for details on setting up user accounts for cross- and multiple-system committals.
- ddexim for details on exporting a data dictionary on one system and importing the file on another system.

2

## **Configuring Cross-Committal Systems**

A cross-committal System is composed of a **source** Image Services system and a **target** Image Services system. The source system commits images to the target system, but does not retain the images locally.

A Remote Entry Server (RES) is a specific type of Cross-Committal system that has no storage library and is used only for entering images for committal to another independent system (the target) that does have a storage library. The target system is also capable of entering and committing images, so in this situation the two systems must be "compatible," that is, they must have non-overlapping document IDs and surface IDs.

### **Cross-Committal Checklist**

You will configure various aspects of your source and target systems depending on what you enter in this worksheet. The configuration steps will follow the checklist.

**Note** You may need to access your source and target systems in order to fill out the checklist.

#### **System Domain Names**

A cross-committal system will have two peer domains. One is the **source** system (no resident storage library) and one is the **target** 

system (storage library is present). Enter their names in the following table.

	Source System	Target System
Domain Name		
Organization Name (if different)		

#### **Document ID Numbers**

The most important input in building a cross-committal system is maintaining system compatibility. This means that document ID numbers on the two systems can't overlap each other. Otherwise, errors will generate and documents won't commit.

Enter the document ID ranges in the following table. Note that the total range is 100,000 to 3,999,999,999. (The numbers entered below are sample values.)

	Starting Doc ID	Ending Doc ID
Source System	100,000	1,000,000
Target System	1,000,001	1,000,000,000

#### **User Accounts**

The Image Services user account name(s) that do the committing on the source system must match user names on the target system. The users must belong to the same primary group. The user account passwords must match on both systems as well.

User account name:

User account password:

User account primary group: \_\_\_\_\_

User account currently exists on source system: Yes No

User account currently exists on target system: Yes No

If yes to both questions, is the password for both accounts identical?

Yes No

User account is a member of the same primary group on both systems:

Yes No

#### **Document Classes**

The document class must match on both the source and target systems.

Document class name for both source and target:

Document class security \_\_\_\_\_

Note	Document class security does not have to match	on source	and target.
	If yes, disposition is the same on both systems:	Yes	No
	Indexes used by document class match exactly:	Yes	No
	Document classes both contain the same indexes	s:Yes	No
	Document class exists on both source and target	: Yes	No

#### **Optical Disk Families**

The optical disk family names must match for both the source and target systems.

Optical disk family name for source and target: \_\_\_\_

Optical disk family exists on both source and target: Yes No

#### For Windows Servers Only



Every Windows server in a cross-committal configuration must have the Cached Credentials options selected.

- **1** Start Xapex.
- 2 In the login dialog box, select Update cached credentials for automation, and Click **OK**.

		×
2	Native User Logon: IS User Logon: IS Password:	Administrator SysAdmin *****
	☑ Update cached cr	edentials for automation
	ОК	Cancel

### **Configure Cross-Committal Systems**

As you complete the following subsections, be sure to distinguish between the **source** system for document entry and the **target** system for document committal.

#### Update the Host File on the Source System

The host file is typically located in the C:\Windows directory and contains information that allows the source server to locate a target server. The information in the host file includes the IP address, the server name, and the four-part NCH name. Locate and open the host file in a text editor. Add the host information for each target server in the crosscommittal system.

#### **Cross-committal Peers**

There are two types of Peers:

The **Compatible Peer** configuration contains remote system SSN and requires that the doc\_id number ranges **not** overlap.

The **Non-Compatible Peer** configuration DOES NOT contain system SSN and allows the doc\_id ranges to overlap.

Cross-committal configurations must be made up of compatible peers where the doc\_id ranges do not overlap.

#### Add Peer to Source System

Each of the FileNet systems in a cross-committal or a multi-committal configuration is an independent system with a Root/Index server. For this reason, each system is considered a **peer system** by all the others.

Note Cross-committal configurations must be made up of compatible peers where the doc\_id ranges do not overlap. See <u>"Cross-committal</u> <u>Peers" on page 28</u> for more information.

These procedures will differentiate between the peers by referring to **source** and **target** systems.

## Server Types Perform the steps in this section on the root server of the source system

- **Note** The system serial number (ssn) of each peer system is listed in the as\_conf.g file on the Root server. You will use the ssn in the Configuration Editor to add additional peer systems.
  - 1 Go to an X-station, a workstation that supports X Windows or Common Desktop Environment (CDE), or a PC with an X Windows emulator and login to your **source** system as **fnsw** user. Start X Windows.
  - 2 As **fnsw** user, run **fn\_edit** by entering:

#### fn\_edit &

The Open Configuration Database dialog box displays.

- **3** Verify that the two-part domain information is correct and click **OK**. The System Configuration Editor window displays.
- 4 Click on the Procedures tab in the System Configuration Editor window.
- **5** Select the Add a Peer System from the Procedure List Box, then click Run.
- 6 Enter the domain name of the Peer server, for example, target.
- **Tip** If the organization name of the target Peer server is different from the organization name of the source Peer server, enter both the domain name and the organization name. For example, **target:YourCorp**.
  - 7 Enter the ssn of the target Peer server.
  - 8 Enter the network address of the target Peer server.

#### Set Document Number Ranges on the Source System

- **9** Select the System Application Services tab.
- **10** Select the Document Services tab.
- 11 Enter the appropriate amounts for the Document Number (high value) and Document Number (low value) for both the source server and the target server. Refer to the numbers you entered in the checklist. THE NUMBERS ON THE SOURCE AND TARGET CAN NOT OVERLAP.

#### Verify/Configure Batch Entry Services on the Source System

- 1 Select the Server Application Services tab. (Click the Server Application Services tab.)
- 2 Select the Batch tab.(Click the **Batch** tab.)
- **3** You will see a box entitled **Target IS Domain Name**. Click the down arrow icon in the box.
- 4 Select the domain name of the target system from the list box. (In the **Target IS Domain List**, click the target system you want.) Your selection determines the system where the batches will be committed.

You should select only compatible systems as peer systems. Compatible systems must have no overlapping document IDs or disk IDs.

- 5 Under the Batch tab, click on Fast Batch Committal. (On the Batch tab, select the Fast Batch Committal option.) Make sure it is set to Yes (✓).
- 6 Click the System Applications Services tab. Click the Others subtab.(On the **System Applications Services** tab, click the **Others**

tab.) Make sure Cataloging Enabled is set to **No** (an 'X' mark). (Select the **Cataloging Enabled** option. Make sure it is set to **X**.)

- 7 Click on the Performance Tuning tab in the System Configuration Editor window. (Click the **Performance Tuning** tab.)
- 8 Click on Server Processes. (Click the Server Processes tab.)
- 9 Click on the arrow button to increase or decrease the number of bes\_ commit processes. (In the **BES Commit Process Count** column, type or select the number of commit processes you want.)
- **10** From the System Configuration Editor window, Click on the File pull down menu and click on the Exit option.(On the **File** menu, click **Exit**.)
- 11 You will then be asked if you want to save the changes you have just made to the current configuration database before you exit. Click on the **Yes** button to save the configuration and exit the System Configuration Editor.
- **12** Put the changes into effect by restarting Image Services. Enter the following at the command line:

#### initfnsw -y restart

**13** Logout of the source system.

#### Add Peer to Target System

The procedures for target system mirror the procedures you followed for the source system with one exception: the target system will be committing to itself.

## Server Types Perform the steps in this section on the root server of the target system.

**Note** The system serial number (ssn) of each peer system is listed in the as\_conf.g file on the Root server. You will use the ssn in the Configuration Editor to add additional peer systems.

- 1 Go to an X-station, a workstation that supports X Windows or Common Desktop Environment (CDE), or a PC with an X Windows emulator and login to your **target** server as **fnsw** user. Start X Windows.
- 2 As **fnsw** user, run **fn\_edit** by entering:

#### fn\_edit &

The Open Configuration Database dialog box displays.

- **3** Verify that the two-part domain information is correct for your target server and click **OK**. The System Configuration Editor window displays.
- 4 Click on the Procedures tab in the System Configuration Editor window.
- 5 Select the Add a Peer System from the Procedure List Box, then click **Run**.
- 6 Enter the domain name of the Peer (source) server, for example, **source**.
- **Tip** If the organization name of the source Peer server is different from the organization name of the target Peer server, enter both the domain name and the organization name. For example, **source:YourCorp**.

- 7 Enter the ssn of the source Peer server.
- 8 Enter the network address of the Peer server.

#### Set Document Number Ranges on the Target System

- **9** Select the System Application Services tab.
- **10** Select the Document Services tab. You should see the source and target server names displayed.
- **11** Enter the appropriate amounts for the Document Number (high value) and Document Number (low value) for both the source server and the target server.
- **CAUTION** These numbers should NOT match what you entered earlier on the source server. These numbers can not overlap.

#### Verify/Configure Batch Entry Services on the Target System

- **1** Select the Server Application Services tab.
- **2** Select the Batch tab.
- **3** You will see a box entitled **Target IS Domain Name**. Check to see if the target system name is visible, if not, click the down arrow icon in the box.
- 4 Select the domain name of the **target** system from the list box. It is likely the default selection. Your selection determines the system where the batches will be committed.

#### **Note** At this step, the target server is configured to commit to itself.

- 5 Under the Batch tab, click on Fast Batch Committal. Toggle **Yes** (check mark). Set Fast Batch Committal to **Yes** for multi-committal systems.
- 6 Click the System Applications Services Tab. Click the Others subtab. Make sure Cataloging Enabled is set to **Yes** (a check mark).
- 7 Click on the Performance Tuning tab in the System Configuration Editor window.
- 8 Click on Server Process.
- **9** Click on the arrow button to increase or decrease the number of bes\_ commit processes.
- **10** From the System Configuration Editor window, Click on the File pull down menu and click on the Exit option.
- 11 You will then be asked if you want to save the changes you have just made to the current configuration database before you exit. Click **Yes** to save the configuration and exit the System Configuration Editor.
- **12** Put the changes into effect by restarting the server by entering the following at the command line:

#### initfnsw -y restart

**13** Logout of the target system.

#### Verify/Configure User IDs and Passwords On the Source Server

You must create User IDs and passwords that match on the source and target servers. If the User IDs, groups or passwords do not match, the cross-committal process will not work correctly.

## Server Types Perform the steps in this section on the root server of the source system

- 1 Go to an X-station, a workstation that supports X Windows or Common Desktop Environment (CDE), or a PC with an X Windows emulator and login to the **source** system as **fnsw** user. Start X Windows.
- **2** Run Application executive by entering the following at the system prompt:

#### Xapex &

3 Log on to Xapex as **SysAdmin**.

For complete instructions on using Xapex refer to the *Image Services* System Administrator's Handbook.

4 Click the Applications pull-down menu from the Applications Executive screen. Select Security Administration. You will be creating a set of user/group objects that appear similar to those in the following table:

Security objects on the source server	Security objects on the target server
tom:target:FileNet	tom:source:FileNet
tom:source:FileNet	tom:target:FileNet
tomgroup:source:FileNet	

**CAUTION** The following steps assume that you **don't** have existing users and groups allocated for cross-committal usage. Please refer to the <u>"Cross-Committal Checklist" on page 23</u> to determine your required tasks.

If you wish to use existing security objects, you must ensure that there are identical security objects on both the source and target server.

#### Add User to the Source System

- 5 From the Users pulldown menu, select Add User.
- **6** The Add User window appears. It should display the source system's domain in the Domain:Organization field.

🗙 Add User	×
Name:	
Domain:Organization	
moorea:FileNetž	V
ОК	Cancel

7 If the source system is **not** indicated in the Domain:Organization field, use the down arrow button to select the source system's Domain:Organization.
- 8 Enter the name of the user you wish to add for the source server in the Name field. Click the OK button.
- **9** At the next Add User window, enter the additional required information. You must, at very least, enter password information by clicking the Password button. Click the OK button to accept the new user. Click OK when you receive the confirmation that the user was added successfully.
- **10** At this point, you should be back in the Security Administration menu. You will now add the same user for the target system.

#### Add Identical User To The Target System

- 11 From the Users pulldown menu, select Add User.
- **12** The Add User window has a field for the Domain:Organization with a default value of the source system's domain. Use the down arrow button to select the **target** system Domain:Organization.
- **Note** If you don't see the target system listed at this point, it is because the target system was not successfully added earlier. Please re-check your steps at <u>"Add Peer to Source System" on page 28</u>.
  - **13** Enter the same user name you entered earlier. Click the OK button.
  - 14 At the next Add User window, enter the additional required information. Click the Password button and enter the same password as you did earlier. Click the required OK buttons to accept the password and the new user. Click OK when you receive the confirmation that the user was added successfully.

**15** At this point, you should be back in the Security Administration menu. You will now add a group for the source system.

#### Add Group To Source System

**16** From the Security Administration menu, Select the Groups pull-down menu. Click Add Group. The Add Group window appears. It should display the source system in the Domain:Organization.

🗙 Add Group	×
Name:	
Domain:Organization	
moorea:FileNet	V
ОК	Cance l

- **17** Enter the name of the administrative group to which the cross-committal user will belong. Click **OK**.
- **18** You will see a more detailed Add Group screen.

🗙 Add Group					×
Group Name: Comment:	juigg∶noon <b>FileNET</b> (	rea:FileNet Group class defaul	t settings		
More Attribut	es:	System	Expiration	•••	
Administrativ	e Group:	SysAdminG:moore	a:FileNet		<b>v</b>
Primary Group	*	uigg:moorea:Fil	eNet		7
Member of Gro	ups:				
				Add Delete	
Group's Membe	rs:				
				Add Delete	
OK		Save	Next	Canc	el

Click **Add** next to the Group's Members window. This allows you to add the recently defined user to the new group.

**19** You will see a list of users for the source system. You should see two entries on this list for the users you defined previously. They will have the format:

username:source:organization username:target:organization.

station1@10.2.53.46:moorea:FileNet	<u>د</u>
station1@10.2.53.65:moorea:FileNet	
stress:moorea:FileNet	
stressG:moorea:FileNet	
sueg:moorea:FileNet	
tbui:moorea:FileNet	
test1:moorea:FileNet	
test_wig:davinci:FileNet	
test_wig:moorea:FileNet	
wig:lab:FileNet	
wig:moorea:FileNet	7
7	
Search Pattern:	
т	
L	
OK	.ı l
	.1

Click on the source system user, then click **OK**. This takes you back to the previous Add User Window. You will see that the user is added to the group.

20 As before, click the Add button next to the Group's Members window. Select the target system user from the list and click **OK**. You should see the source and target users added to the group.

🗙 Add Group					×
Croup Name: Comment:	juigg:moor Ĵ <b>FileNET</b> (	ea:FileNet Croup class defaul	t settings		
More Attribute	es:	System	Expiration	•	
Administrative	e Group:	SysAdminG:moore	a:FileNet		$\mathbf{v}$
Prinary Group	•	uigg:moorea:Fil	eNet		7
Member of Grou	:squ				_
				Add Delete	
Group's Member	rs:				
wig:lab:FileN wig:moorea:Fi	et leNet			Add Delete	
۷					
ОК		Save	Next	Cance	1

- 21 Click **OK** to exit the Add Group screen. Click **OK** on the confirmation message. You should now see the Security Administration menu.
- 22 Exit Security Administration by clicking the System pull-down menu, followed by the Exit selection. You will see the main Application Executive window. Don't exit Application Executive.

## Verify/Configure Optical Disk Family on the Source System

This section involves the creation (or verification) of an optical disk family for cross-committal. Note that you will be creating (or verifying) the same family on the target system as well.

- **1** From the Applications Executive main window, select the Applications pull-down window followed by Database Maintenance.
- 2 From the Database Maintenance screen, select the Families pull-down menu followed by Define/Update Family.
- **3** The Define/Update Media Families screen displays.

🗙 Define/Update Media Fan	nilies	_
<u>File Benote H</u> elp		
Family Name:	Ĭ	List
Disk Size:		
Interleave Counts:	$\diamond$ 1 $\diamond$ 2 $\diamond$ 3 $\diamond$ 4 $\diamond$ 5 $\diamond$ 6	6 💠 7 💠 8

4 Click List to display a list of media families.

X Families	×
new_family	2
philip6	
sasha_family	
shawnee	
str48520 str49703	
str50753	
test_stress	.
world2x	7
	<b>^</b>
Selection:	
I	
OK Cance 1	

- 5 You may select an existing family by clicking on a family name or you may create a family by entering a new family name in the selection field. Click the OK button when done.
- **6** The Define/Update Media Families screen appears with the name of your family in the Family Name field. If you selected an existing family, there will be a value in the Disk Size field.

- 7 If you are creating a new family, click the down arrow button to select a size.
- 8 Complete the remaining steps pertaining to primary/tranlog selection, etc. Click **OK** on any confirmation messages. Take note of all the settings because you will be creating an identical family on the target system. When finished, select the File pull-down menu followed by Exit. Click **OK** on any confirmation messages. The Database Maintenance will appear. Do NOT exit from Database Maintenance.

## Verify/Configure Document Class on Source System

This section involves the creation (or verification) of a document class for cross-committal. Note that you will be creating the same class on the target system as well.

1 From the Database Maintenance screen, select the Classes pull-down menu followed by Define/Update Class. The Define/Update Document Classes screen appears.

🗙 Define/Update Doc	ument Classe	95				_ 🗆 ×
<u>File Security Inc</u>	dex <u>H</u> elp					
Document Class Na	me:				List	
Description:	I					
Family:				/	🗆 Cluster Fa	mily
-DMA Properties				_		
Display Name:	Ĭ					
GUIDS:					V	Edit
Enable Cataloging:	:	$\diamond$ Yes	\$ No	Migration	To 0.D. 💠 Yes	💠 No
Migration Delay:		💠 Yes	💠 No	• •	Days	Hours
Document Entry:						
Pages Per Document	t:	¢Vari∂	able	<b>◇</b> Fixed		
Max Pages Per Bate	ch:	Ĭ				
Verification:		🗆 Image	e	Index	🗆 Batch Tot	al
Disposition:						
♦ Archive	💠 De lete					
Ĭ	Months From	:	💠 Da	te Filed	◇Date Close	ed
-WorkFlo:						
System:		1	7	Queue:		▼

2 Click the **List** button located next to the Document Class Name field. You will see a list of available document classes as well as a field for entering a new document class.

🗙 Classes	×
Items:	
hlee2 junk_class lkw2xclass lkw2xwormclass lkw52 llatif2x	Δ
modify_class new new1 old_dcl1 philipclass6	
Edit:	
OK Can	cel

- 3 Enter the name of a new document class in the Edit field or click on an existing class. Click **OK**.
- 4 The Define/Update Document Classes screen appears again. If you are creating a new class, all the fields will be blank. If you are using an

existing class, note that an optical disk family is associated with the class. Compare the family to the family you indicated in the checklist.

If you are creating a new class OR if you need to change the optical disk family, click the down arrow button next to the Family field. This will display a list of available families. Click on the family you created earlier.

- **5** Fill out the rest of the required information to complete the document class creation. Take note of all your entered values because you will be creating an identical document class on the target system.
- **Note** Add indexes and security parameters as needed to this document class. Note that the index names and index security on the source and target server need not match.
  - 6 When finished with the document class parameters, click the **File** pulldown menu followed by Save. Click on the confirmation messages. Click **File** again followed by **Exit**.
  - 7 From the Database Maintenance screen, click on the **Miscellaneous** pull-down menu followed by **Exit**. You should be in the command line mode on the source system.
  - 8 Logout of the source system.

# Verify/Configure User IDs and Passwords On the Target System

**Server Types** Perform the steps in this section on these servers:

#### Root server on the target system.

You must create User IDs and passwords for the target server that match what you entered on the source server. If the User IDs or passwords do not match, the cross-committal process will not work correctly.

- 1 Go to an X-station, a workstation that supports X Windows or Common Desktop Environment (CDE), or a PC with an X Windows emulator and login to the **target** system as **fnsw** user. Start X Windows.
- **2** Start Application Executive by entering the following at the system prompt:

#### Xapex

3 Log on to Application Executive as **SysAdmin**.

For complete instructions on using Xapex refer to the *Image Services* System Administrator's Handbook.

4 Click the Applications pull-down menu from the Applications Executive screen. Select Security Administration. You will be creating a set of user/group objects that appear similar to the following:

source: source server summary	target: target server summary
tom:target:YourCorp	tom:source:YourCorp
tom:source:YourCorp	tom:target:YourCorp
	tomgroup:source:YourCorp

- Even though you created a target user on the source system in the Note previous steps (tom:target:YourCorp, for example), you must repeat the steps on the target system.
- CAUTION The following steps assume that you **don't** have existing users and groups allocated for cross-committal usage. If you wish to use existing security objects, you must ensure that there are identical security objects on both the source and target systems.

#### Add User to the Source System

- From the Users pulldown menu, select Add User. 5
- The Add User window appears. It should display the target system's 6 domain in the field for the Domain:Organization.

🗙 Add User	×
Name:	
Domain:Organization	
moorea:FileNetį	¥
ОК	Cancel

- **7** If the **target** server is **not** indicated in the Domain:Organization field, use the down arrow button to select the target system Domain:Organization.
- 8 Enter the name of the user that you entered in the previous steps for the **source** server configuration. Click **OK**.
- **9** At the next Add User window, enter the additional required information. You must, at very least, enter password information by clicking the Password button.
- **Note** The password for the **target** user must be the same as the password used on the **source** system.

Click **OK** to accept the new user. Click **OK** when you receive the confirmation that the user was added successfully.

**10** At this point, you should be back in the Security Administration menu. You will now add the same user for the **source** system.

#### Add Identical User To The Target System

- 11 From the Users pulldown menu, select Add User.
- 12 The Add User window has the **target** system's domain in the field for the Domain:Organization. Use the down arrow button to select the **source** system Domain:Organization.
- 13 Enter the same name of the user you entered earlier. Click **OK**.
- 14 At the next Add User window, enter the additional required information. Click the Password button and enter the same password as you did earlier. Click the required OK buttons to accept the password and the new user. Click OK when you receive the confirmation that the user was added successfully.
- **15** At this point, you should be back in the Security Administration menu. You will now add a group for the target system.

#### Add Group To Target System

**16** From the Security Administration menu, Select the Groups pull-down menu. Click on Add Group. The Add Group window appears. It should display the **target** system's Domain:Organization in the field for the Domain:Organization.

🗙 Add Group	×
Name:	
Domain:Organization	
moorea:FileNetį	▼
ОК	Cance l

- **17** Enter the name of the administrative group to which the cross-committal user will belong. Click **OK**.
- **18** You will see the next Add Group screen.

🗙 Add Group					×
Group Name: Comment:	juigg∶moor FileNET (	rea:FileNet Group class default	t settings		
More Attribut	es:	System	Expiration	1	
Administrativ	e Group:	SysAdminG:moore	a:FileNet		<b>T</b>
Prinary Croup	;*	uigg:moorea:File	aNet		<b>V</b>
Member of Gro	ups:				
				Add Delete	
Group's Membe	ers:				
				Add Delete	
OK		Save	Next	Can	cel

Click **Add** next to the Group's Members window. This will allow you to add the recently defined user to the new group.

**19** You will see a list of users for the source system. You should see two entries on this list for the users you defined previously. They will have the format:

username:source:organization username:target:organization.

User/Group/Device Selection List	
station1@10.2.53.46:moorea:FileNet	<u>ح</u>
station1@10.2.53.65:moorea:FileNet	
stress:moorea:FileNet	
stressG:moorea:FileNet	
sueg:moorea:FileNet	
tbui:moorea:FileNet	
test1:moorea:FileNet	
test_wig:davinci:FileNet	
test_wig:moorea:FileNet	
wig:lab:FileNet	
wig:moorea:FileNet	7
J	
1	
Search Pattern:	
Ι	
ОК	Cancel

Click on the source system user, then click **OK**. This will take you back to the previous Add User Window. You will see that the user is added to the group.

20 As before, click Add next to the Group's Members window. Select the target system user from the list and click OK. You should see the

source and target users added to the group.

🗙 Add Group			×
Croup Name:	juigg:moor <b>FileNET</b> (	rea:FileNet Group class default settings	
	[*		
More Attribut	es:	System Expiration	
Administrativ	e Group:	SysAdminG:moorea:FileNet	V
Primary Group	*	uigg:meerea:FileNet	
Member of Gro	ups:		_
		Add.	
Group's Membe	rs:		
wig:lab:FileN wig:moorea:Fi	et leNet	Add.	
		4	
ОК		Save Next	Cancel

- 21 Click **OK** to exit the Add Group screen. Click **OK** on the confirmation message. You should now see the Security Administration menu.
- 22 Exit Security Administration by clicking the System pull-down menu, followed by the Exit selection. You will see the main Application Executive window. Don't exit Application Executive.

# Verify/Configure Optical Disk Family on the Target System

This section involves the creation (or verification) of an optical disk family for cross-committal. Note that you will be creating (or verifying) the same family on the target system as you did on the source system.

- **1** From the Applications Executive main window, select the Applications pull-down window followed by Database Maintenance.
- 2 From the Database Maintenance screen, select the Families pull-down menu followed by Define/Update Family.
- **3** The Define/Update Media Families screen displays.

🗙 Define/Update Media Fan	nilies	
<u>File Benote H</u> elp		
Family Name:	Ĭ	List
Disk Size:		
Interleave Counts:	$\diamondsuit 1 \diamondsuit 2 \diamondsuit 3 \diamondsuit 4$	$\diamond 5 \diamond 6 \diamond 7 \diamond 8$

4 Click List to display a list of media families.

🗙 Families	×
new_family	
philip6T	
sasha_family   shaunoo	
str48520	
str49703	
test_stress	
tranlog	
Selection:	
I	
OK Cancel	

5 You may select an existing family (provided it is the same family name as that on the source system) by clicking on a listed family name, or you may create a family by entering a new family name in the selection field. Click **OK** when you're done.

- The Define/Update Media Families screen appears with the name of 6 your family in the Family Name field. If you selected an existing family, there will be a value in the Disk Size field.
- 7 If you are creating a new family, click the down arrow button next to the Disk Size field to select a size.
- Complete the remaining steps pertaining to primary/tranlog selection, 8 etc. Click **OK** on any confirmation messages. Make sure the family name matches the source system's family name. When finished, select the File pull-down menu followed by Exit. Click **OK** on any confirmation messages. The Database Maintenance will appear. Do NOT exit from Database Maintenance.

# Verify/Configure Document Class on the Target System

This section involves the creation (or verification) of a document class for cross-committal. Note that you created (or verified) the same class on the target system as well.

1 From the Database Maintenance screen, select the Classes pull-down menu followed by Define/Update Class. The Define/Update Document Classes screen appears.

🗙 Define/Update Docume	ent Classes				_ 🗆 ×
<u>F</u> ile <u>S</u> ecurity <u>I</u> ndex	Help				
Document Class Name:	Ĭ			List	
Description:	Ĭ				
Family:		V		□ Cluster Fa	mily
-DMA Properties					
Display Name:	Ĭ				
GUIDS:				▼	Edit
Enable Cataloging:	💠 Yes	◇ No	Migration	To O.D. 💠 Yes	\$ No
Migration Delay:	💠 Yes	\$ No	Ĭ	Days	Hours
Document Entry:				,	
Pages Per Document:	💠 Vari	able	<b>◇</b> Fixed		
Max Pages Per Batch:	Ĭ				
Verification:	🗆 Imag	e	🗆 Index	🗆 Batch Tot	al
Disposition:					
♦ Archive ♦ I	lelete				
<u>I</u> Mon	ths From:	💠 Date	e Filed	$\diamond$ Date Close	ed
-WorkFlo:					
System:		7	Queue:		V

2 Click List located next to the Document Class Name field. You will see a list of available document classes as well as a field for entering a new document class.

X Classes X
Items:
hlee2 junk_class lkw2xclass lkw2xwormclass lkw52 llatif2x modify_class new new1 old_dcl1 philipclass6 7
Edit:
I
OK Cancel

- 3 Select an existing class or enter the name of a new document class in the Edit field. Click **OK**.
- 4 The Define/Update Document Classes screen appears again. If you are creating a new class, all the fields will be blank. If you are using an

61

existing class, note that an optical disk family is associated with the class. Compare the family to the family you used on the source system.

If you are creating a new class OR if you need to change the optical disk family, click the down arrow button next to the Family field. This will display a list of available families. Click on the family you created earlier.

- **5** Fill out the rest of the required information to complete the document class creation. Make sure that the disposition parameters match those of the identical document class on the source system.
- **Note** Add indexes and security parameters as needed to this document class. Note that the index names and index security on the source and target server need not match.
  - 6 When finished with the document class parameters, click the **File** pulldown menu followed by **Save**. Click on the confirmation messages. Click **File** again followed by **Exit**.
  - 7 From the Database Maintenance screen, click on the Miscellaneous pull-down menu followed by **Exit**. You should be in the command line mode on the target system.

# **Test the Cross-Committal Configuration**

For information on scheduling committal processes, see Chapter 4, "Scheduling System Committals," on page 101.

When the FileNet software has started successfully, the system is ready to run. Test the system by entering, committing, and retrieving several documents to make sure they've been committed on the appropriate systems.

# **Return to Production Mode**

The upgrade is finished and you can restart the IS software and return your FileNet system to normal operation.

3

# **Configuring Multi-Committal Systems**

A multi-committal system is an independent FileNet system that contains a Storage Library server and commits images both to its own Storage Library and to the Storage Library of another independent FileNet system. Multi-committal systems may or may not be "compatible" systems with non-overlapping document IDs. If they are not compatible, new doc IDs are assigned on the target system. This could prove to be a minor performance consideration.

# **Multi-Committal Checklist**

Each of the FileNet systems in a cross-committal configuration or a multi-committal configuration is an independent system with a Root/ Index server. For this reason, each system is considered a **peer system** by all the others. These procedures will differentiate between the peers by referring to **source** and **target** systems.

# **System Domain Names**

A multi-committal system will have two peer domains. One is the **source** system (no resident storage library) and one is the **target** system (storage library is present). Enter their names in the following table.

	Source System	Target System
Domain Name		
Organization Name (if different)		

#### **Document ID Numbers**

In a multi-committal system configuration, the document ID number ranges can overlap.

Enter the document ID ranges on the following table. Note that the total range is 100,000 to 3,999,999,999.

Source System	Source System	Target System	Target System
Starting Doc ID	Ending Doc ID	Starting Doc ID	Ending Doc ID

## **User Accounts**

The Image Services user account name(s) that do the committing on the source system must match the user names on the target system. The users must belong to the same primary group. The user account passwords must match on both systems as well. You will be creating the user accounts/passwords/groups later in this procedure depending on how your systems are currently configured. Answer the following questions to determine your configuration tasks.

User account name:

User account password:

User account primary group: \_\_\_\_\_

User account currently exists on source system: Yes No

User account currently exists on target system: Yes No

If yes to both questions, is the password for both accounts identical?

Yes No

User account is a member of the same primary group on both systems:

Yes No

#### **Document Classes**

Although not required for multi-committal systems, for organizational purposes, you may want to have document class must match on both the source and target systems.

Document class name for source:

Document class name for target: \_\_\_\_\_

**Note** Document class security does not have to match on source and target.

#### **Optical Disk Families**

Optical disk families do not need to match on the source and target systems for multi-committal configurations.

Optical disk family name for source:

Optical disk family name for target: \_\_\_\_\_

## For Windows Servers Only



Every Windows server in a multi-committal configuration must have the Cached Credentials options selected.

- **1** Start Xapex.
- 2 In the login dialog box, select Update cached credentials for automation, and click **OK**.

		D	<	
	Native User Logon:	Administrator		
<u>IS</u>	IS User Logon:	SysAdmin		
	IS Password:	****		
Update cached credentials for automation				

# **Configure Multi-Committal Systems**

As you complete the following subsections, be careful to distinguish between the **source** system for document entry and the **target** system for document committal.

# Update the Host File on the Source System

The host file is typically located in the C:\Windows directory and contains information that allows the source server to locate a target server. The information in the host file includes the IP address, the server name, and the four-part NCH name. Locate and open the host file in a text editor. Add the host information for each target server in the multicommittal system.

# **Multi-committal Peers**

There are two types of Peers:

The **Compatible Peer** configuration contains remote system SSN and requires that the doc\_id number ranges **not** overlap.

The **Non-Compatible Peer** configuration DOES NOT contain system SSN and allows the doc\_id ranges to overlap.

Multi-committal configurations support BOTH compatible and noncompatible configurations. This is helpful if you do not want to limit the number of doc\_ids by dividing up the ranges on each system. You can create peers WITHOUT the SSN for incompatible systems, and the doc\_id range can overlap by a little or a lot.

If the peers are created with the SSN, and error 30,0,42 is generated (at the target system):

- 1 Use fn\_edit to delete the SSN from the **Peer Configurations** of both the source and target systems.
- 2 Restart Image Services. The documents will finish migrating to the target media.

# Add Peer to Source System

Each of the FileNet systems in a multi-committal System configuration is technically an independent system with a Root/Index server. For this reason, each system is considered a **peer system** by all the others. These procedures will differentiate between the peers by referring to **source** and **target** systems.

- **Note** The system serial number (ssn) of each peer system is listed in the as\_conf.g file on the Root server. You will use the ssn in the Configuration Editor to add additional peer systems.
  - 1 Go to an X-station, a workstation that supports X Windows or Common Desktop Environment (CDE), or a PC with an X Windows emulator and login to your **source** system as **fnsw** user.
  - 2 As fnsw user, run fn\_edit by entering:

#### fn\_edit &

The Open Configuration Database dialog box displays.

- **3** Verify that the two-part domain information is correct and click **OK**. The System Configuration Editor window displays.
- 4 Click on the Procedures tab in the System Configuration Editor window.

- **5** Select the Add a Peer System option from the Procedure List Box, then click Run.
- 6 Enter the domain name of the Peer server, for example, target.
- **Tip** If the organization name of the target Peer server is different from the organization name of the source Peer server, enter both the domain name and the organization name. For example, **target:YourCorp**.
  - 7 Enter the ssn of the target Peer server.
  - 8 Enter the network address of the target Peer server.

#### Set Document Number Ranges on the Source System

- **9** Select the System Application Services tab.
- **10** Select the Document Services tab. You should see the source and target server names displayed.
- 11 Enter the appropriate amounts for the Document Number (high value) and Document Number (low value) for both the source server and the target server. THESE NUMBERS CAN NOT OVERLAP.

# Verify/Configure Batch Entry Services on the Source System

- **1** Select the Server Application Services tab.
- **2** Select the Batch tab.
- **3** You will see a box entitled **Target Image Services Domain Name**. Click the down arrow icon in the box.

- 4 Select the domain name of the **local** system from the list box. Your selection determines the system where the batches will be committed. Since both (source and target) systems will write to their own local media, the local domain name will be selected in this field. (default)
- 5 Under the Batch tab, click on Fast Batch Committal. Toggle Yes (check mark) or No (an 'X' mark) by clicking on the left mouse button. Set Fast Batch Committal to Yes for multi-committal systems.
- 6 Click the System Applications Services Tab. Click the Others subtab. Make sure Cataloging Enabled is set to **Yes** if you are configuring a multi-committal System .
- 7 Click on the Performance Tuning tab in the System Configuration Editor window.
- 8 Click on Server Process.
- **9** Click on the arrow button to increase or decrease the number of bes\_ commit processes.
- **10** From the System Configuration Editor window, Click on the **File** pull down menu and click on the **Exit** option.
- 11 You will then be asked if you want to save the changes you have just made to the current configuration database before you exit. Click on the **Yes** button to save the configuration and exit the System Configuration Editor.
- **12** Put the changes into effect by restarting the server by entering the following at the command line:

#### initfnsw -y restart

**13** Logout of the source system.

## Add Peer to Target System

The procedures for target system mirror the procedures you followed for the source system with one exception: the target system will be committing to itself.

- **Note** The system serial number (ssn) of each peer system is listed in the as\_conf.g file on the Root server. You will use the ssn in the Configuration Editor to add additional peer systems.
  - 1 Go to an X-station, a workstation that supports X Windows or Common Desktop Environment (CDE), or a PC with an X Windows emulator and login to your **target** server as **fnsw** user.
  - 2 As fnsw user, run fn\_edit by entering:

#### fn\_edit &

The Open Configuration Database dialog box displays.

- **3** Verify that the two-part domain information is correct for your target server and click **OK**. The System Configuration Editor window displays.
- 4 Click on the Procedures tab in the System Configuration Editor window.
- 5 Select the Add a Peer System option from the Procedure List Box, then click Run.
- 6 Enter the domain name of the Peer (source) server, for example, **source**.

**Tip** If the organization name of the source Peer server is different from the organization name of the target Peer server, enter both the domain name and the organization name. For example, **source:Yourcorp**.

- 7 Enter the ssn of the source Peer server.
- 8 Enter the network address of the Peer server.

#### Set Document Number Ranges on the Target System (optional)

- **9** Select the System Application Services tab.
- **10** Select the Document Services tab. You should see the source and target server names displayed.
- **11** Enter the appropriate amounts for the Document Number (high value) and Document Number (low value) for both the source server and the target server.

# Verify/Configure Batch Entry Services on the Target System

- 1 Select the Server Application Services tab.
- 2 Select the Batch tab.
- 3 You will see a box entitled **Target Image Services Domain Name**. Check to see if the target system name is visible, if not click the down arrow icon in the box.
- 4 Select the domain name of the **target** system from the list box. Your selection determines the system where the batches will be committed.

**Note** At this step, the target server is configured to commit to itself.

5 Under the Batch tab, click on Fast Batch Committal. Toggle Yes or No by clicking on the left mouse button. Set Fast Batch Committal to Yes for multi-committal systems.
- 6 Click the System Applications Services Tab. Click the Others subtab. Make sure Cataloging Enabled is set to **Yes**.
- 7 Click on the Performance Tuning tab in the System Configuration Editor window.
- 8 Click on Server Process.
- **9** Click on the arrow button to increase or decrease the number of bes\_ commit processes.
- **10** From the System Configuration Editor window, Click on the File pull down menu and click on the Exit option.
- 11 You will then be asked if you want to save the changes you have just made to the current configuration database before you exit. Click on the **Yes** button to save the configuration and exit the System Configuration Editor.
- **12** Restart the software.

### initfnsw -y restart

**13** Logout of the target system.

### Verify/Configure User IDs and Passwords On the Source Server

You must create User IDs and passwords that match on the source and target servers. If the User IDs or passwords do not match, the multi-committal process will not work correctly.

## Server Types Perform the steps in this section on the root server of the source system

- 1 Go to an X-station, a workstation that supports X Windows or Common Desktop Environment (CDE), or a PC with an X Windows emulator and login to the **source** system as **fnsw** user. Start X Windows.
- **2** Run Application executive by entering the following at the system prompt:

### Xapex &

3 Log on to Xapex as **SysAdmin**.

For complete instructions on using Xapex refer to the *Image Services System Administrator's Handbook*.

4 Click the Applications pull-down menu from the Applications Executive screen. Select Security Administration. You will be creating a set of user/group objects that appear similar to the following:

source: source server summary	target: target server summary
tom:target:FileNet	tom:source:FileNet
tom:source:FileNet	tom:target:FileNet
tomgroup:source:FileNet	

**CAUTION** The following steps assume that you **don't** have existing users and groups allocated for multi-committal usage. If you wish to use existing security objects, you must ensure that there are identical security objects on both the source and target server.

### Add User to the Source System

- 5 From the Users pulldown menu, select Add User.
- **6** The Add User window appears. It should display the source system's domain in the Domain:Organization field.

🗙 Add User	×
Name:	
Domain:Organization	
moorea:FileNet	V
ОК	Cancel

- 7 If the source system is **not** indicated in the Domain:Organization field, use the down arrow button to select the source system's Domain:Organization.
- 8 Enter the name of the user you wish to add for the source server in the Name field and click **OK**.
- **9** At the next Add User window, enter the additional required information. You must, at very least, enter password information by clicking the Password button. Click **OK** to accept the new user. Click **OK** when you receive the confirmation that the user was added successfully.

**10** At this point, you should be back in the Security Administration menu. You will now add the same user for the target system.

### Add Identical User To The Target System

- 11 From the Users pulldown menu, select Add User.
- **12** The Add User window has a field for the Domain:Organization with a default value of the source system's domain. Use the down arrow button to select the **target** system Domain:Orgainization.
- 13 Enter the same name of the user you entered earlier. Click **OK**.
- 14 At the next Add User window, enter the additional required information. Click the Password button and enter the same password as you did earlier. Click the required OK buttons to accept the password and the new user. Click OK when you receive the confirmation that the user was added successfully.
- **15** At this point, you should be back in the Security Administration menu. You will now add a group for the source system.

### Add Group To Source System

**16** From the Security Administration menu, Select the Groups pull-down menu. Click on Add Group. The Add Group window appears. It should display a field for the Domain:Organization with a default value of the source system's Domain:Organization.

🗙 Add Group	×
Name:	
Domain:Organization	
moorea:FileNet	V
ОК	Cance l

**17** Enter the name of the administrative group to which the multi-committal user will belong and click **OK**.

**18** The Add Group dialog box appears.

Croup Name:	juigg:moor	ea:FileNet			
Comment:	ĴFileNET C	roup class default	settings		
More Attribut	es:	System	Expiratio	n	
Administrativ	e Group:	SysAdminG:moorea	:FileNet		1
Prinary Croup	*	uigg:moorea:File	Net		V
Member of Gro	ups:		Ē		
			ĥ	Add	
			Ļ	Delete	
<u>ال</u>					
Group's Membe	rs:				
			П	Add	
			Ļ	Delete	
7				Delete	

Click **Add** next to the Group's Members window. This allows you to add the recently defined user to the new group.

**19** You will see a list of users for the source system. You should see two entries on this list for the users you defined previously. They will have the format:

username:source:organization username:target:organization.

User/Group/Device Selection List	
station1@10.2.53.46:moorea:FileNet	
station1@10.2.53.65:moorea:FileNet	
stress:moorea:FileNet	
stressG:moorea:FileNet	
sueg:moorea:FileNet	
tbui:moorea:FileNet	
test1:moorea:FileNet	
test_wig:davinci:FileNet	
test_wig:moorea:FileNet	
wig:lab:FileNet	
wig:moorea:FileNet	7
7	
	,
Search Pattern:	
I	
OK	Cancel
on	Guicer

Click on the source system user, then click **OK**. This takes you back to the previous Add User Window. You will see that the user is added to the group.

20 As before, click Add next to the Group's Members window. Select the target system user from the list and click **OK**. You should see the source and target users added to the group.

Croup Name: juigg:moo	rea:FileNet
Comment: ĴFileNET∣	Group class default settings
More Attributes:	System Expiration
Administrative Group:	SysAdminG:moorea:FileNet
Primary Croup:	uigg:nooree:FileNet
Member of Groups:	
7	Add Add I Delete
Group's Members:	15
wig:lab:FileNet wig:moorea:FileNet	Add Delete

- 21 Click **OK** to exit the Add Group screen. Click **OK** on the confirmation message. You should now see the Security Administration menu.
- 22 Exit Security Administration by selecting **Exit** from the System menu. The main Application Executive window appears. Don't exit the Application Executive.

### Verify/Configure Optical Disk Family on the Source System

This section involves the creation (or verification) of an optical disk family for multi-committal.

- **Note** If you are creating an identical family on the target system, note the settings.
- **Server Types** Perform the steps in this section on these servers:

### Root server on the source system.

- **1** From the Applications Executive main window, select the Applications pull-down window followed by Database Maintenance.
- 2 From the Database Maintenance screen, select the Families pull-down menu followed by Define/Update Family.
- **3** The Define/Update Media Families screen displays.

🗙 Define/Update Media Far	nilies	_
<u>F</u> ile <u>Renote</u> <u>H</u> elp		
Family Name:	¥	List
Disk Size:		
Interleave Counts:	$\diamond$ 1 $\diamond$ 2 $\diamond$ 3 $\diamond$	4

4 Click List to display a list of media families.

🗙 Families	×
new_family philip6	
philip6T	
sasha_family	
str48520	
str49703	
test_stress	
tranlog world2y	
J IZ	
Selection:	
I	
OK Cance l	

5 You can select an existing family by clicking on a listed family name or you can create a family by entering a new family name in the selection field. Click **OK** when you're done.

- 6 The Define/Update Media Families screen appears with the name of your family in the Family Name field. If you selected an existing family, there will be a value in the Disk Size field.
- 7 If you are creating a new family, click the down arrow button to select a size.
- 8 Complete the remaining steps pertaining to primary/tranlog selection, etc. Click the **OK** buttons on any confirmation messages. If you are creating an identical family on the target system (not required for multi-committal systems), take note of all the settings.
- 9 See <u>"Creating a Remote Family" on page 83</u> to create a remote family.
- **10** When finished, select **Exit** from the **File** menu. Click the **OK** button on any confirmation messages. The Database Maintenance main window will appear. Do NOT exit Database Maintenance.

### **Creating a Remote Family**

To create families on both the source and target systems complete the following steps:

- 1 Open the family on the source system. Select the **Remote** menu option and click **Family**.
- 2 Select the target domain from the **Domains** list.
- **Note** If this list is blank, verify that the target system is configured as a peer. If an error [92,2,2] is displayed, close and restart Xapex. Log in as a user with account access to both systems.

- **3** After the connection is established, the **Families** list will be populated. Select the family on the remote system that will receive the documents from the source system.
- **Note** Family name and media **can** be different.
  - 4 Save and exit the **Family** window.
  - **5** Test to confirm functionality.
- **Note** Documents that use this family must have a DOC CLASS that exists on both source and target systems. Documents using this family must write to the local media before it is sent to the target system.

### Verify/Configure Document Class on Source System

This section involves the creation (or verification) of a document class for multi-committal.

- **Note** If you are creating an identical document class on the target system, note the settings.
  - 1 From the Database Maintenance screen, select the Classes pull-down menu followed by Define/Update Class. The Define/Update Document Classes screen appears.

🗙 Define/Update Docume	ent Classes				_ 🗆 ×
<u>F</u> ile <u>S</u> ecurity <u>I</u> ndex	Help				
Document Class Name:	¥		1	List	
Description:	Ĭ				
Family:	n	V		🗆 Cluster Fa	mily
-DMA Properties					
Display Name:	Ĭ				
GUIDS:				V	Edit
Enable Cataloging:	💠 Yes	\$ No	Migration	To 0.D. 💠 Yes	◇ No
Migration Delay:	💠 Yes	\$ No	*	Days	Hours
-Document Entry:					
Pages Per Document:	¢Vari	able	◇ Fixed		
Max Pages Per Batch:	Ĭ				
Verification:	🗆 Imag	e	🗆 Index	🗆 Batch Tot	al
-Disposition:					
♦ Archive ♦ I	elete				
Mon	ths From:	💠 Dat	e Filed	⇔Date Close	ed
-WorkFlo:					
System:		7	Queue:		▼

2 Click the **List** button located next to the Document Class Name field. You will see a list of available document classes as well as a field for entering a new document class.

🗙 Classes	x
Items:	
hlee2 junk_class lkw2xclass lkw2xwormclass lkw52 llatif2x modify_class new new1 old_dcl1 philipclass6	
Edit:	

- 3 Select an existing class or enter the name of a new document class in the Edit field. Click **OK**.
- 4 The Define/Update Document Classes screen appears again. If you are creating a new class, all the fields will be blank.

Click the down arrow button next to the Family field to retrieve a list of available families. Click on the family you created earlier.

- **5** Add indexes and security parameters as needed to this document class. The index names and index security on the source and target server need not match.
- **6** Fill out the rest of the required information to complete the document class creation.
- 7 When finished with the document class parameters, click the File pulldown menu followed by Save. Click on the confirmation messages. Click on File again followed by Exit.
- 8 From the Database Maintenance screen, click on the **Miscellaneous** pull-down menu followed by **Exit**. You should be in the command line mode on the source system.
- 9 Logout of the source system.

### Verify/Configure User IDs and Passwords on the Target System

**Server Types** Perform the steps in this section on these servers:

### Root server on the target system.

You must create User IDs and passwords that match on the source and target servers. If the User IDs or passwords do not match, the multi-committal process will not work correctly.

1 Go to an X-station, a workstation that supports X Windows or Common Desktop Environment (CDE), or a PC with an X Windows emulator and login to the **target** system as **fnsw** user. Start X Windows **2** Start Application Executive by entering the following at the system prompt:

### Xapex

3 Log on to Application Executive as **SysAdmin**.

For complete instructions on using Xapex refer to the *Image Services System Administrator's Handbook*.

4 Click the Applications pull-down menu from the Applications Executive screen. Select Security Administration. You will be creating a set of user/group objects that appear similar to the following:

source: source server summary	target: target server summary
tom:target:FileNet	tom:source:FileNet
tom:source:FileNet	tom:target:FileNet
	tomgroup:source:FileNet

- **Note** Even though you created a **target** user on the **source** system in the previous steps (e.g. tom:target:FileNet), you must repeat the steps on the **target** system.
- **CAUTION** The following steps assume that you **don't** have existing users and groups allocated for multi-committal usage. If you wish to use existing security objects, you must ensure that there are identical security objects on both the source and target systems.

### Add User to the Source System

5 From the Users pulldown menu, select Add User.

6 The Add User window appears. It should display the **target** system's domain in the field for the Domain:Organization.

🗙 Add User	×
Name:	
Domain:Organization	
moorea:FileNetį	V
ОК	Cance l

- 7 If the target server is not indicated in the Domain:Organization field, use the down arrow button to select the target system Domain:Organization.
- 8 Enter the name of the user that you entered in the previous steps for the **source** server configuration. Click **OK**.
- **9** At the next Add User window, enter the additional required information. You must, at very least, enter password information by clicking the Password button.
- **Note** The password for the **target** user must be the same as the password used on the **source** system.

Click **OK** to accept the new user. Click **OK** when you receive the confirmation that the user was added successfully.

**10** At this point, you should be back in the Security Administration menu. You will now add the same user for the **source** system.

### Add Identical User To The Target System

- 11 From the Users pulldown menu, select Add User.
- 12 The Add User window has the **target** system's domain in the field for the Domain:Organization. Use the down arrow button to select the **source** system Domain:Organization.
- 13 Enter the same name of the user you entered earlier and click **OK**.
- 14 At the next Add User window, enter the additional required information. Click the Password button and enter the same password as you did earlier. Click the required OK buttons to accept the password and the new user. Click OK when you receive the confirmation that the user was added successfully.
- **15** At this point, you should be back in the Security Administration menu. You will now add a group for the target system.

### Add Group To Target System

16 From the Security Administration menu, Select the Groups pull-down menu. Click on Add Group. The Add Group window appears. It should display the **target** system's Domain:Organization in the field for the Domain:Organization.

🗙 Add Group	×
Name:	
Domain:Organization	
moorea:FileNet	V
ОК	Cancel

**17** Enter the name of the administrative group to which the multi-committal user will belong. Click **OK**. **18** You will see the next Add Group screen.

	igg:moor	rea:FileNet		
Comment: F	ileNET (	Group class defaul	t settings	
More Attributes:	:	System	Expiration	•••
Administrative (	Group:	SysAdminG:moore	a:FileNet	1
Prinary Croup:		uigg:moorea:Fil	eNet	1
Member of Groups	s:			_
				Add Delete
Group's Members:	:		A	
Sroup's Members:	•			Add Delete

Click the **Add** button next to the Group's Members window. This will allow you to add the recently defined user to the new group.

**19** You will see a list of users for the source system. You should see two entries on this list for the users you defined previously. They will have the format:

username:source:organization username:target:organization.

User/Group/Device Selection List	
station1@10.2.53.46:moorea:FileNet	<u>د</u>
station1@10.2.53.65:moorea:FileNet	
stress:moorea:FileNet	
stressG:moorea:FileNet	
sueg:moorea:FileNet	
tbui:moorea:FileNet	
test1:moorea:FileNet	
test_wig:davinci:FileNet	
test_wig:moorea:FileNet	
Wig:lab:FileNet	
wig:moorea:FileNet	
4	
Search Pattern:	
-	
I	
ОК	Cancel

Select the source system user, then click the **OK** button. This takes you back to the previous Add User Window. You will see that the user is added to the group.

20 As before, click the Add button next to the Group's Member window. Select the target system user from the list and click the OK button. You should see the source and target users added to the group

* 3000	reath i lenet.	
Comment: FileNET (	Group class default settings	
More Attributes:	System Expiration	
Administrative Group:	SysAdminG:noorea:FileNet	
Primary Croup:	uigg:noorea:FileNet.	
Member of Groups:		
	Add	
N		
⊲ Group's Members:		
Sl Group's Members: wig:lab:FileNet wig:moorea:FileNet	Add Delete	

- 21 Click **OK** to exit the Add Group screen. Click **OK** on the confirmation message. You should now see the Security Administration menu.
- 22 Exit Security Administration by clicking the System pull-down menu, followed by the **Exit** selection. You will see the main Application Executive window. Don't exit Application Executive.

# Verify/Configure Optical Disk Family and Document Class on the Target System

This section involves the creation (or verification) of an optical disk family for multi-committal.

Note	If you are creating an identical family as the source system (not
	required for multi-committal systems), use the same settings as the
	source.

**Server Types** Perform the steps in this section on these servers:

Root server and all compatible servers. Compatible servers cannot have overlapping Document ID numbers or conflicting Disk (surface) ID numbers.

- **1** From the Applications Executive main window, select the Applications pull-down window followed by Database Maintenance.
- 2 From the Database Maintenance screen, select the Families pull-down menu followed by Define/Update Family.
- **3** When the Define/Update Media Families screen displays, click **List** to display a list of media families.



4 You may select an existing family by clicking on a listed family name or you may create a family by entering a new family name in the selection field. Click **OK** when you're done.

🗙 Families	×
new_family	
philip6T	
sasha_family	
shawnee	
str40520	
str50753	
test_stress	
world2x	H
<b>1</b>	
Selection:	
I	
OK Cance I	

**5** The Define/Update Media Families screen appears with the name of your family in the Family Name field. If you selected an existing family, there will be a value in the Disk Size field.

- 6 If you are creating a new family, click the down arrow button next to the Disk Size field to select a size.
- 7 Complete the remaining steps pertaining to primary/tranlog selection, etc. Click the OK buttons on any confirmation messages. When finished, select the File pull-down menu followed by Exit. Click the OK button on any confirmation messages. The Database Maintenance will appear. Do NOT exit from Database Maintenance.

### Verify/Configure Document Class on the Target System

This section involves the creation (or verification) of a document class for multi-committal.

- **Note** If you are creating an identical document class as the source system (not required for multi-committal systems), use the same settings as the source.
  - 1 From the Database Maintenance screen, select the Classes pull-down menu followed by Define/Update Class to display the Define/Update Document Classes screen.

🗙 Define/Update Docum	ent Classes	
<u>F</u> ile <u>S</u> ecurity <u>I</u> ndex	<u>H</u> elp	
Document Class Name:	Ĭ	List
Description:	ž	
Family:	V	🗆 Cluster Fam

2 Click the **List** button located next to the Document Class Name field. You will see a list of available document classes as well as a field for entering a new document class

🗙 Classes	×
Items:	
hlee2	$\Delta$
junk_class	
lkw2xclass	
Ikw2xwormclass	
11-1:C2	
modify place	
nouirg_class	
neu1	
philipclass6	
Edit:	
Т	
L	
	1
	B1

3 Click on an existing class or enter the name of a new document class in the Edit field. Click **OK**.

4 The Define/Update Document Classes screen appears. If you are creating a new class, all the fields will be blank.

Click the down arrow button next to the Family field to retrieve a list of available families. Click on the family you created earlier.

- **5** Add indexes and security parameters as needed to this document class. The index names and index security on the source and target server need not match.
- **6** Fill out the rest of the required information to complete the document class creation.
- 7 When finished with the document class parameters, click the File pulldown menu followed by Save. Click on the confirmation messages. Click on File again followed by Exit.
- 8 From the Database Maintenance screen, click on the **Miscellaneous** pull-down menu followed by **Exit**. You should be in the command line mode on the target system.

### **Test the Multi-Committal Configuration**

For information on scheduling committal processes, see <u>Chapter 4,</u> <u>"Scheduling System Committals," on page 101</u>.

When the FileNet software has started successfully, the system is ready to run. Test the system by entering, committing, and retrieving several documents to make sure they've been committed on the appropriate systems.

## **Return to Production Mode**

The upgrade is finished and you can restart the IS software and return your FileNet system to normal operation.

4

## **Scheduling System Committals**

This chapter describes how you can schedule cross-committals (bes\_ commit) and multi-committals (rmt\_commit). This feature allows you to select specific times and days for processing committals of batches or documents. You may want to schedule this activity during non-peak hours. For example, if the network traffic is heavy between the hours of 8:00am and 5:50pm weekdays, you can schedule the committal operation outside these peak hours of operation.

**Note** When you use this scheduling feature, committals for documents scanned during peak hours may be delayed. In addition, you may need to increase the transient database and cache space to accommodate the backlog of transient data.

/fnsw/local/sd/sched\_conf (UNIX platforms)

Image Services reads the scheduling file from the following location:





<FNSW\_drive>:\fnsw\_loc\sd\sched\_conf (Windows platforms)

This is an ASCII text format file that you generate. If this file does not exist, no scheduling will take place to disable the daemon processes.

If column one has the following characters, that line will be skipped:

- # Comment line
- 0 NULL
- \n New line

All key tokens will start at column one of each new line. The key token will be the name of the committal daemon to be scheduled. There are two supported daemon tokens (not case sensitive and always starting at column one):

### Bes\_commit

### Rmt\_commit

Following the daemon token indicator is the mandatory start and end time. The start and end time will have following format:

### Hh:mm - The two digit hour in military time.

When the start time you specify is later in the day than the end time, processing will occur from 00:00 to the end time and from start time to 24:00. See the example below.

Following the end time indicator is the optional three character day of the week indicator (SUN, MON, TUE, WED, THU, FRI, SAT). If no day indicator is present, then the schedule will be followed every day of the week. The day indicator entries will supersede the non-day entries.

For example, you can use the following entries if you want to follow one schedule Monday through Saturday and a different schedule for Sunday. Sunday's schedule supersedes the base schedule. In the following example bes\_commit will not run between 8:00am to 5:30pm Monday through Saturday and will run continuously on Sunday:

### Bes\_commit 17:30 08:00

### Bes\_commit 00:00 24:00 SUN

The following is an example of the schedule file:

```
#
#
        bes commit
#
#
# Weekday schedule start time is 5:30pm and stop time is 8:00am
# bes commit will not process batches between 8:00am and 5:30pm
#
#
bes commit 17:30 08:00
#
# Saturday half day schedule
    Start time is 12:00 (noon) and End time is 8:00am
#
#
    bes commit will not process batches from 8:00am to 12:00 noon
#
bes_commit 12:00 08:00 SAT
#
```

```
# Sunday schedule
    Start time is 8:00am and end time 5:00pm
#
   bes commit will run 8:00am to 5:00pm. bes commit will not process
#
#
   requests between 00:00 to 8:00am and between 5:00pm to 12:00
#
   midnight
#
bes_commit 08:00 17:00 SUN
#
#
# rmt commit schedule
#
#
# Sunday schedule 24 hour processing
#
rmt commit 00:00 24:00 SUN
#
# Monday schedule 5:00pm-12:00 midnight
#
rmt_commit 17:00 24:00 Mon
#
# Tuesday schdule
#
    Start time is 8:00am and end time 5:00pm
# rmt commit will run 8:00am to 5:00pm. rmt commit will not process
# requests between 00:00 to 8:00am and between 5:00pm to 12:00
#
  midnight
#
rmt commit 08:00 17:00 TUE
#
# Wednesday through Saturday are unscheduled so rmt commit will process
# requests all day
#
```

## Index

### С

committal cross-system 11 multiple-system 15 committal sequence 11 cross-system committal 11 security 13

### D

database maintenance Xapex 14 ddexim 15, 21 document committal sequence 11 documents 7

### F

family names 14

indexes 14

### Μ

multiple-system committal 15 system security 19

### Ν

names 13

### Ρ

passwords 13 peer systems, adding 28, 31, 68, 71

### R

related documents 7 RES 12

### S

security cross-system committal 13 multiple-system committal 19

### Т

tranlog 16